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          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning,

          3  everyone. I would like to call this meeting of the

          4  Subcommittee on Zoning And Franchises to order.

          5  Joining me this morning are Committee members,

          6  Council Member Dilan, Council Member Felder, Council

          7  Member Jackson, Council Member McMahon, Council

          8  Member Katz, Council Member Seabrook, and Council

          9  Member Al Vann will be joining us shortly.

         10                 We have two items on the agenda. I'm

         11  going to take the easy one first, because we can do

         12  that in hopefully five minutes, which is the

         13  sidewalk cafe application. Then we will proceed to

         14  the public hearing on Douglaston/Littleneck

         15  rezoning.

         16                 Let me just sort of remind everybody

         17  what the ground rules are for the public hearing.

         18  When we get to the Douglaston/Littleneck rezoning,

         19  Department of City Planning will make a

         20  presentation, then we will follow with the public

         21  hearing. Depending upon how many people are signed

         22  up to speak, you will either have two or three

         23  minutes to voice your opinion. I will make a

         24  decision when I see how many people are signed up to

         25  speak.
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          2                 There will be no booing, there will

          3  be no applause, there will be no hissing one way or

          4  the other. There will be no intimidation of any

          5  person who wants to testify. If you have an opinion,

          6  you sign up to speak and you speak, and you have

          7  your two minutes or three minutes, depending upon

          8  what it's going to be.

          9                 If you cannot control yourself, I

         10  will ask the Sergeant-At-Arms to remove you.

         11  Remember, everybody is entitled to their opinion.

         12  This is the people's house and everybody is going to

         13  be heard. Nobody is to try and intimidate anybody

         14  else. I hope you all respect each other's opinions.

         15                 With that, we'll go to the first

         16  item. Land Use No. 331, 20075075 TCQ. An application

         17  by Piu Bello, for consent to establish, maintain and

         18  operate an unenclosed sidewalk cafe located at 70-09

         19  Austin Street.

         20                 This application, this restaurant

         21  lies within Council Member Melinda Katz's district.

         22  The applicant is here. I will ask the applicant to

         23  introduce themselves and make their brief

         24  presentation, and then I will call on Council Member

         25  Katz.
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          2                 Turn on the mike, and speak into the

          3  mike, if you could.

          4                 MS. COSENTINO: Hi. My name is Susana

          5  Cosentino. I represent Pio Bello, and we're here for

          6  the sidewalk cafe.

          7                 MR. SMITH: My name is Royal Smith, I

          8  represent Piu Bello, the sidewalk unenclosed cafe.

          9  We are submitting new drawings that, at the meeting

         10  with Councilwoman Katz, we have decreased the number

         11  of tables and chairs to eight tables, 24 chairs, and

         12  we're going to disseminate the new drawings back to

         13  DCA to disseminate out to the regular governmental

         14  agencies.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And you have

         16  submitted a letter stating that fact, correct?

         17                 MS. COSENTINO: Yes.

         18                 MR. SMITH: That is correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Which we have in

         20  our possession.

         21                 Council Member Katz.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chairman. And I want to thank Piu Bello for coming

         24  in and testifying and also negotiating. This was

         25  originally supposed to be two rows of a sidewalk
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          2  cafe and through negotiations we are down to one row

          3  and three chairs.

          4                 There is an issue that is arising

          5  here, and I don't know if it's arising in other

          6  people's districts with the Post Office, the boxes,

          7  the newspaper boxes that are on the street, which

          8  really does cut off part of the street, and that's

          9  one of the issues that determined it for me to have

         10  to lower it to one row. And, so, in the future, I

         11  think we should probably look into that a little

         12  more. But as it stands, I approve of the compromise

         13  that we've established and I ask all my colleagues

         14  for their support.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

         17  from Committee members? So, do you want it to add

         18  something?

         19                 MR. SMITH: Yes. As far as the --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Speak into the

         21  mike, because the meeting is being recorded, so if

         22  we can't hear you, whoever is going to do the

         23  transcript certainly can't hear you either.

         24                 MR. SMITH: I think the issue with the

         25  newspaper stands that I had told Councilwoman Katz
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          2  is not listed as an objection to DCA regular

          3  objection rules.

          4                 So, we're conceding with what you

          5  want as eight tables and 24 chairs.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm a little

          7  unclear as to the purpose of that statement.

          8                 MR. SMITH: That I believe we should

          9  address DCA and tell them to add on mobile newspaper

         10  stands, which is not an objection.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. I do

         12  believe that's a different issue, though. And I

         13  think it's the one I brought up, and we probably

         14  should be happy that we have a sidewalk cafe, and

         15  that we're getting the eight tables and the three

         16  chairs, and my understanding by you testifying here

         17  today is that that is an appropriate compromise and

         18  one that Piu Bello will work with and make sure that

         19  they are committed to doing; is that correct?

         20                 MR. SMITH: That is absolutely

         21  correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 MR. SMITH: And on your behalf, we

         25  hope that you confer with DCA to change their
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          2  objection list, of what's on the objection, as far

          3  as the eight feet rule or whatever.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm not sure

          5  we'll be able to do that. As it stands, your

          6  sidewalk cafe right now, and I suggest that we'd

          7  probably be careful as to the future conversation

          8  right now, but right now your sidewalk cafe is going

          9  to be approved the way it stands.

         10                 Now, I bring up the boxes and the

         11  newspaper boxes, because I do think that's an issue

         12  for the future.

         13                 But as it stands, this is what I

         14  would like my colleagues to approve. Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         16  Council member.

         17                 MR. SMITH: I --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I would stop

         19  talking at this point. I mean, that's only a

         20  suggestion, but I would stop talking.

         21                 MR. SMITH: Well, I thought this was a

         22  forum of ideas, and, you know, put forth.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Council

         24  Member.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member
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          2  Jackson.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Sorry, let me

          4  ask you a question.

          5                 You've had discussions with Council

          6  Member Katz concerning one row versus two rows, are

          7  you in agreement with the one row? Or you're not in

          8  agreement at all?

          9                 I'm asking the question because it

         10  seems that you have some reservations about that. I

         11  just need to be clear before I make a decision. Do

         12  you agree with what she's indicated?

         13                 MS. COSENTINO: Yes. I'm in agreement.

         14                 MR. SMITH: Yes. I have to do what my

         15  client says. She's in agreement.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Your client.

         17  Are you part of the owner, or you're representing

         18  your client?

         19                 MR. SMITH: Representing the client.

         20  The client pays me so --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Fine.

         22                 Then let me ask the client then,

         23  because -- are you the owner, or is she the owner?

         24  I'm asking who is the owner here?

         25                 MS. COSENTINO: I am the owner.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay, then

          3  I'm asking you, do you agree with what Ms. Katz

          4  indicated, or you do not agree? I need to know that.

          5                 MS. COSENTINO: I totally agree.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay. Thank

          7  you. That's it, sir.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

          9  Councilman Jackson. I think that was very helpful.

         10                 Seeing no other questions, I will

         11  actually call the vote on this item, and I'll ask

         12  Counsel to call the vote. Chair recommends approval.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chairman

         14  Avella.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         17  Dilan.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         20  Felder.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         23  Jackson.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member
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          2  Katz.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye. And I want

          4  to thank my colleagues for their support. And I vote

          5  aye.

          6                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          7  Rivera.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I vote aye.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         10  McMahon.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye.

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         13  Seabrook.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: I vote aye.

         15                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         16  eight in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

         17  abstentions.

         18                 Council Member Vann.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         21  nine in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

         22  abstentions and stands open?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: No, you can close

         24  the vote until the recessed meeting.

         25                 Just for my colleagues' information,
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          2  since the next item involves a rather lengthy public

          3  hearing, and the fact that there will probably be

          4  several modifications, one of which may be in my

          5  district, one of which may be in Council Member

          6  Weprin's district, who also includes this rezoning,

          7  we're going to lay the vote over on the Douglaston

          8  and Littleneck rezoning to a recessed meeting right

          9  before the Land Use Committee meeting. So this is

         10  the only vote that we will take this morning. So, if

         11  you have other events that you have to go to, I know

         12  there is a big meeting on the 421-A. You can

         13  certainly attend it.

         14                 With that, we will now move on to the

         15  next item, which is Land Use Number 346 and 347,

         16  commonly referred to as the Douglaston/Littleneck

         17  rezoning. C060562 ZMQ, which is the actual rezoning;

         18  and N 060563 ZRY, which is a text change for the R2A

         19  districts.

         20                 I will now call up the Department of

         21  City Planning to give the presentation.

         22                 MR. YOUNG: Good morning, Chair

         23  Avella, Council members, ladies and gentlemen. My

         24  name is John Young, and I'm the Director of the

         25  Queens Office of the Department of City Planning. On
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          2  behalf of City Planning Director Amanda Burden, I'm

          3  very pleased to be here this morning to present the

          4  Department's proposal to update zoning designations

          5  in the Douglaston and Littleneck communities in

          6  Northeast Queens.

          7                 I am joined by Liz Errico, who is the

          8  Project Manager for the rezoning proposal that is

          9  before you, and I believe we've distributed some

         10  packages for you which will give you some

         11  information. We'll also do a presentation with the

         12  boards.

         13                 For this proposal the Department has

         14  developed a carefully delineated rezoning strategy

         15  to address the particular concerns of residents

         16  regarding the area's development trends.

         17                 As we will explain, the proposal

         18  seeks to curb tear-downs and inappropriate

         19  development that diminishes the community's built

         20  fabric, yet ensures that homeowners have flexibility

         21  to adapt their property to meet the needs of their

         22  families.

         23                 Also before you is a zoning text

         24  amendment that would simplify procedures allowing

         25  homeowners to continue and complete active
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          2  alterations to their houses in areas that are

          3  rezoned to R2A districts.

          4                 This proposed text change is a

          5  solution to a problem that arose when Bayside was

          6  rezoned a year and a half ago, and it was conceived

          7  by Chair Avella.

          8                 The zoning proposal affects 135

          9  blocks in portions of Douglaston and Littleneck.

         10  These Queens's neighborhoods are exemplified by

         11  appealing residential streets, with a mix of one-

         12  and two-family houses, generally constructed from

         13  the late 19th century to mid-20th century.

         14                 The southern portion of the area also

         15  has several clusters of garden apartments. Natural

         16  features are prominent qualities in the area,

         17  including its rolling topography, wetland area, such

         18  as Ally Park and Udall's Cove and striking views of

         19  the East River along its northern shore.

         20                 Like many communities throughout

         21  Queens and the City, Douglaston and Littleneck are

         22  experiencing a housing construction boom.

         23                 While this new development is

         24  generally desirable, recent trends in these

         25  neighborhoods have resulted in new housing that is
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          2  increasingly inconsistent with the area's

          3  established patterns of development.

          4                 In some instances, single-family

          5  homes are replaced by attached or semi-attached

          6  homes with many apartments, more than what there are

          7  originally, or they are placed by detached

          8  single-family houses overwhelmingly larger than

          9  neighboring houses.

         10                 The rezoning proposal seeks to

         11  protect the qualities and characteristics that make

         12  the area so desirable. Its main objectives are to

         13  reinforce, establish building and density patterns,

         14  prevent the subdivision of larger building lots in

         15  very low-density areas, ensure that new development

         16  more closely matches the scale of existing homes,

         17  and prevent encroachment of commercial development

         18  into residential areas.

         19                 In order to achieve the first

         20  objective, the rezoning proposal will replace zoning

         21  that generally dates to 1961 with new lower density

         22  or contextual districts, these new zoning districts

         23  and their boundaries have been carefully selected to

         24  better reflect the existing density and built

         25  character of various parts of Douglaston and
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          2  Littleneck.

          3                 In the very low-density areas of

          4  Douglaston Manor, the current R1-2 zoning does not

          5  reflect the predominance of larger lot sizes in

          6  certain portions, and as a result of this mismatch,

          7  one existing home can be replaced by two large homes

          8  on lots half the size of the original.

          9                 To preserve the larger yards and the

         10  unique character of these lots, the Department has

         11  proposed the first R1-1 zoning in Queens to increase

         12  minimum lot sizes and limit subdivision of property.

         13                 To ensure that new development more

         14  closely matches the scale of existing homes, the

         15  Department is proposing to use the recently-created,

         16  and that's a year and a half old, R2-A zoning

         17  district in six portions of the area.

         18                 The R2A designations removes many of

         19  the floor area exemptions and pliable height

         20  regulations so it can curb the construction of

         21  so-called "Mcmansions."

         22                 The R2A zone establishes clear rules

         23  to govern the height, size and lot coverage of

         24  homes, while providing a reasonable framework to

         25  make improvements and extensions onto existing
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          2  houses.

          3                 At the City Planning Commission

          4  hearing on October 25th, 23 persons spoke against

          5  the proposed R2A zone for two portions where it was

          6  proposed. The first was along the westerly frontage

          7  of Littleneck Parkway south of 41st Avenue, where

          8  the current zoning is R3-1; and second, in the area

          9  located east of Marathon Parkway, between Northern

         10  Boulevard and the Long Island Expressway, known as

         11  Littleneck Hills where the current zoning is R1-2

         12  and R2. The property owners in both areas desired

         13  additional flexibility for expanding existing

         14  single-family homes, and after careful review the

         15  Commission modified the proposal in accordance with

         16  these requests, and Liz will explain that further in

         17  her presentation.

         18                 The Commission also modified the

         19  depth of the C2-2 commercial overlay on the western

         20  edge of the northerly block front of Northern

         21  Boulevard between 248th and 249th Streets. The

         22  original proposed change would have reduced the

         23  overlay depth from 150 feet to 100 feet along this

         24  block front. At the City Planning Commission

         25  hearing, the property owner of the shopping center

                                                            20

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  on the western portion of the blockfront noted that

          3  the change would create a split commercial and

          4  residential district for the center.

          5                 Under the Commission's modified depth

          6  of 125 feet for the commercial overlay, only on the

          7  western half of the block front, the property would

          8  still be slightly split by residents' district

          9  lines, but it would not affect the full commercial

         10  use of the lot.

         11                 Yet, commercial use on the adjacent

         12  residential lot would be prohibited by this reduced

         13  commercial overlay depth.

         14                 We are grateful to have worked with

         15  the area's many committed civic groups and residents

         16  in creating and refining this proposal. The rezoning

         17  plan has benefitted greatly from their input, as

         18  well as from the leadership of the areas, Council

         19  Members, Chair Avella and David Weprin, as well as

         20  from urban planning consultant, Paul Graziano.

         21                 The proposal has received

         22  recommendations for approval with conditions from

         23  Community Board 11, from Queens Borough President

         24  Helen Marshall. In her recommendation, the Borough

         25  President asked City planning to review the

                                                            21

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  boundaries in the area East of Marathon Parkway and

          3  for the frontage along Littleneck Parkway south of

          4  41st Avenue. And as I said, the Commission made

          5  corresponding modifications to the proposal in both

          6  areas.

          7                 We believe the public review process

          8  has produced a better rezoning strategy, one more

          9  responsive to the particular needs and issues of

         10  residents in the area, and we hope that you, too,

         11  will support the rezoning proposal and the

         12  accompanying text change that seeks to protect and

         13  enhance the qualities of Douglaston and Littleneck.

         14                 Ms. Errico will now present the

         15  zoning proposal and then we'll also quickly go over

         16  the zoning text amendment.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If you don't

         18  mind, I'm going to interrupt you for just one

         19  moment. I'd like to call on Council Member Eric

         20  Gioia for his vote on the other Land Use item.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         22  Gioia.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you.

         24                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         25                 I will be voting yes on the street
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          2  cafe matters before us. Let me also just thank City

          3  Planning and Chair Avella for this important

          4  rezoning. As someone who represents Queens, as well,

          5  I've got to say protecting the character of our

          6  neighborhoods in making sure that, well, that houses

          7  aren't torn down for buildings that don't fit the

          8  character of the neighborhood is vitally important.

          9  So, I thank you all for your work.

         10                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Go ahead.

         12                 MS. ERRICO: Thank you. Good morning,

         13  Council Members. My name is Liz Errico. I'm a

         14  Planner in the Queens Office of City Planning.

         15                 What I'd like to review for you is

         16  the existing zoning and the changes that are being

         17  proposed and have been adopted by the City Planning

         18  Commission.

         19                 The map that you see in front of you

         20  illustrates the existing zoning in the Douglaston

         21  and Littleneck communities. It consists of five

         22  general residence low density or contextual zoning

         23  districts that together allow a very, very wide

         24  spectrum of housing from single-family detached to

         25  multi-family apartments. But, however, in the R3-2
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          2  areas, which you would find in the R3-2 areas in the

          3  southern portion of the study area. The R3-2 is

          4  predominantly developed with garden apartment

          5  houses.

          6                 This zoning has been in place since

          7  1961, with the exception of the Pines District in

          8  the center of the community. Littleneck Pines, which

          9  was rezoned in about 2000, R3-1. At that time it was

         10  the only contextual zoning we had, and that was to

         11  preserve the semi-detached one- and two-family

         12  context that was there at the time.

         13                 As John mentioned, the goal was to

         14  preserve the one- and two-family density in the

         15  area, and the building patterns of the area, and the

         16  Commission adopted -- let me just change the mike.

         17  In response to the testimony it heard and the

         18  Borough President's recommendation, the Commission

         19  did make three modifications to the certified

         20  application. The first being in the Littleneck Pines

         21  area, there are six single-family detached homes

         22  that front on Littleneck Parkway. However, adjacent,

         23  immediately adjacent to it, across the street from

         24  it, you will notice that the zoning is R3-1. That

         25  area is developed with garden apartments, row houses
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          2  and cluster developments, and based at the request

          3  of testimony, the owners in the area, they requested

          4  that the Commission retain the R3-1 zoning in that

          5  area, because of the context. These were six

          6  individual homes that were really in the midst of

          7  multi-family development. The Commission granted,

          8  made that modification.

          9                 The second was the commercial

         10  development. You have in your packets a drawing or a

         11  tax map, it's towards the end, before the zoning

         12  comparison chart there, which illustrates where the

         13  line that the Commission modified in response to the

         14  request that was made by the owner. Originally the

         15  commercial overlay was to a depth of 150 feet. We

         16  took it back to 100. The owner requested that it be

         17  retained at 150 because, as John mentioned, the

         18  inability to -- it would be a split zone, basically.

         19                 The new commercial overlay will be

         20  extended to 125 feet. As you can see, it takes a

         21  corner of the adjacent residential parcel, but it's

         22  not a sufficient amount of the lot area to enable it

         23  to be developed commercially. It can only remain a

         24  residential use as it is now.

         25                 And the commercial development that
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          2  fronts on Northern Boulevard will remain totally

          3  commercial. There is no impact on that development.

          4                 The third modification that the

          5  Commission made is in the Littleneck Pines -- sorry,

          6  Littleneck Hills area in the center between Northern

          7  Boulevard and Horace Harding Expressway, Long Island

          8  Expressway.

          9                 Originally the certified application

         10  showed that this central portion would be rezoned

         11  R2A and in response to the testimony that was given

         12  at the public hearing, in response to the

         13  Commission's tour that they took of the area, and

         14  they have -- and in response to the Borough

         15  President's recommendation, they saw that there was

         16  a variety of housing types in the area, there was

         17  already a number of homes that had been developed in

         18  the area, and because of the architecture and the

         19  height of the buildings in the area and the coverage

         20  in the area, really didn't fit the R2A predictable

         21  development in the area.

         22                 So, the Commission agreed that the

         23  area east of Marathon Parkway should be R2. There

         24  are two portions that are an existing R1-2 area, in

         25  the northern area of Littleneck Hills here and in
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          2  the southern area, around 251st Street. These areas

          3  will be rezoned from R1-2 to R-2. These lots are

          4  generally 40 by 100. They do not fit the

          5  requirements, the lot with regulation, and are

          6  basically non-complying under the existing zoning.

          7                 By rezoning them to R2, these

          8  properties will, approximately 96 percent of them

          9  will become complying and will meet the regulations

         10  under the zoning.

         11                 I'll review the other areas quickly

         12  that are being rezoned. As John mentioned, in the

         13  northern portion along -- wrong map. Thank you. In

         14  Douglaston Manor, along Littleneck Bay, the proposal

         15  is to have an R1-1 district, which will introduce

         16  stricter yard requirements, lot area requirements

         17  and lot width requirements.

         18                 What this will do is reduce the

         19  ability to subdivide the large lots that are

         20  characteristic of the historic area. This is a New

         21  York City landmark area, Douglaston Manor, and this

         22  will add to the additional protections of the area.

         23                 In Udall's Cove and in Udall's

         24  Ravine, the proposal is to rezone these areas from

         25  C3, R3-1 to an R1-2. A C3 district is the waterfront
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          2  district basically that encourages waterfront uses,

          3  that is now located in the area where it used to be

          4  a marina in Udall's Cove. The C3 district has an

          5  equivalent, residential equivalent of R3-2, which is

          6  a multi-family district. By introducing the R1-2

          7  district in this area, we're introducing density

          8  controls in the ravine and in the cove area, which

          9  will, if future development occurs, will limit the

         10  adverse impacts on these very sensitive

         11  environmental areas.

         12                 There is one area that is zoned R4

         13  right now which is occupied by a farm house that

         14  dates back I believe to mid-19th century, and that

         15  is currently zoned R4, which allows multi-family

         16  development, we are proposing that that be rezoned

         17  to R1-2 to match the characteristic and the building

         18  patterns of the area just to the north of it.

         19                 We're proposing R2 in three areas, it

         20  will encompass about ten blocks. They're currently

         21  zoned R4, which is a general residence district and

         22  R1-2. As I explained before, the R2 area in

         23  Littleneck Pines.

         24                 In the southern district there is a

         25  portion that is currently zoned R4 that we're
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          2  proposed to change to R2. This is strictly a

          3  single-family detached area and the R2 recognizes

          4  this.

          5                 R2A is by far the largest component

          6  of this particular rezoning. It encompasses 67

          7  percent of the rezoning lots in the area, and it

          8  covers the bay area in the north where the zoning is

          9  currently R1-2. These approximately 60 properties do

         10  not meet the existing R1-2 lot area requirements,

         11  which is why we're proposing the R2A in this

         12  section. There are also portions in Westmoreland, in

         13  the Littleneck Pines area which currently has an

         14  R3-1 designation. Littleneck Hills, west of Marathon

         15  Parkway, and in the Southern district of Littleneck,

         16  along the Grand Central Parkway and the county line

         17  and another portion along Douglaston parkway, just

         18  south of the golf course.

         19                 What the R2A does, these are, for the

         20  most part, our existing family zones, however, what

         21  the R2A does is introduce more regulations that

         22  would define a more predictable building type in the

         23  area, and it would help maintain the existing

         24  building patterns in the area. What it would do, it

         25  would prevent out-of-scale development,
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          2  out-of-context development.

          3                 In the northern portion, there is an

          4  R3-1 district which reflects the existing

          5  semi-detached one- and two-family homes that are in

          6  the area. The area is currently zoned C3, which is

          7  that waterfront R3-2 district, and an R2, which is a

          8  single-family home detached district.

          9                 These are all semi-detached homes,

         10  one- and two-family. So, the R3-1 is just reflecting

         11  the building patterns.

         12                 There are several R3X areas below

         13  Grand Central Park -- sorry -- Horace Harding

         14  Expressway, there are three areas which are detached

         15  homes, one- and two-family homes on narrow lots.

         16                 And in addition to this, this is what

         17  represents the area that we are limiting the

         18  density. This is an existing R3-2 zone, which allows

         19  multi-family development in all types of housing,

         20  and here by introducing the one- and two-family cap,

         21  we're also precluding the multi-family and we're

         22  requiring detached development.

         23                 In the southern portion of the

         24  district, in the existing R-4, we're proposing an

         25  R4-1, which is a contextual district that again
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          2  limits development to one- and two-family homes,

          3  detached and semi-detached homes.

          4                 So, again, we're trying to reflect

          5  the context of what is in the neighborhood now.

          6                 The last is the commercial overlays,

          7  which is also the third modification I had explained

          8  that the Commission made.

          9                 The theory, or the goal behind the

         10  commercial strip modification, commercial overlay

         11  district modifications, was to prevent commercial

         12  development from encroaching onto the side streets.

         13  Existing commercial overlays are mapped to 150 feet

         14  along Northern Boulevard, and in most cases, that

         15  150 feet reaches across residential development.

         16                 What we have tried to do was to

         17  eliminate commercial zoning on those residentially

         18  developed lots, and we have, I believe it's on six

         19  block fronts along Northern Boulevard that we've

         20  reduced the depth to 100 feet, with the exception of

         21  that one modification that goes to 125 feet for that

         22  commercial building.

         23                 That concludes the description of the

         24  rezoning text.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Obviously, I want
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          2  to thank City Planning for moving this ahead, this

          3  long awaited rezoning for Douglaston and Littleneck.

          4  There are a lot of good things in this rezoning

          5  package, besides the fact that we're protecting

          6  residential neighborhoods once again, as we have

          7  done in other rezonings. For my colleagues'

          8  information, for the first time in Queens, we're

          9  getting R1-1, which is something that Queens has

         10  never had, which is 100 by 100 lot, which will

         11  reduce the likelihood that a one-family house can be

         12  bought, demolished and then subdivided into multiple

         13  family homes. So, this is a good achievement for the

         14  Borough of Queens.

         15                 I also appreciate the changes that

         16  have been made to the Udall's Cove area. Obviously

         17  the City and the community are trying to require

         18  more land, but in the meantime, this is a very good

         19  protection.

         20                 I would also say that Department of

         21  City Planning and I have always worked very closely

         22  together with the community and the community board,

         23  and we made a number of changes to this application

         24  even prior to it being certified.

         25                 However, there is some outstanding
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          2  issues relating to City Planning's recent

          3  modification. And I an anxious to hear from the

          4  public today on those modifications. I think

          5  everybody who signed in, signed in favor in general

          6  of the application. But there are some outstanding

          7  issues, and as I mentioned at the beginning of this,

          8  I can't say definitely, but both Council Member

          9  Weprin and myself may make modifications to this

         10  application. So, we want to hear from the public

         11  today, and then we will make a decision and then we

         12  will take a vote at the recessed meeting.

         13                 With that, if there are any questions

         14  from Committee members?

         15                 MR. YOUNG: Sure.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: If I may, Mr.

         17  Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         19  McMahon.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you.

         21                 In this rezoning application, how

         22  many lots are there where you are either maintaining

         23  or expanding one-family homes?

         24                 MR. YOUNG: I'm not sure I quote

         25  understand the question.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I will tell

          3  you why I asked, and then you'll understand. And I

          4  won't waste time because I know this is specific to

          5  this area.

          6                 In our borough, in Staten Island, we

          7  have an application for a downzoning, and it's being

          8  held up because we're told that it includes too many

          9  one-family homes. So, what I want to know is, in

         10  this application, in the rezoning, through the

         11  rezoning efforts, how many one-family homes are you

         12  either protecting that exists now or in new areas

         13  requiring that one-family homes be built?

         14                 MR. YOUNG: Sure. If I could have the

         15  laser pointer? The areas are generally zoned for

         16  one-family homes if the current zoning is R1-2 or

         17  R2. And for the most part, the areas we're proposing

         18  R1-1 and R2A are already, those, single-family

         19  homes. So those are areas where we're maintaining

         20  them.

         21                 There are a few selected areas where

         22  you could have one- or two-family homes, or in a

         23  couple of cases, one or two-family or even attached

         24  homes where we're doing a downzoning to protect the

         25  one-family character, and those include, as Liz
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          2  mentioned, right here in Littleneck Pines, those

          3  areas that have been rezoned in 1990 had had just

          4  one- and two-family zone, but the R2A will now limit

          5  that area to just single-family housing.

          6                 The area in the commonwealth civic

          7  area, this little R2 area is currently R4. This

          8  would again protect it to a single family character,

          9  and this small area right on the edge of Douglaston,

         10  part golf course here, is currently R3-2.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay. So, how

         12  many lots are you protecting to the one-family

         13  character?

         14                 MR. YOUNG: We could give you a

         15  number, but I would think it's fewer than 100 lots

         16  all told that we're adding to it. But as Liz had

         17  mentioned before, the R2A is the larger portion of

         18  this whole rezoning area. We have 135 blocks and 67

         19  percent of the area will be given the R2A

         20  designation on its own.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: And if I

         22  could just briefly, Mr. Chairman, what is the -- why

         23  is the preference of going from R2 to R2A, how does

         24  that help the community?

         25                 MR. YOUNG: Well, as we described when
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          2  we created the zoning is that there is a trend to

          3  tear down existing sound quality housing and

          4  replacing it with much larger housing, because the

          5  current R2 zoning in a lot of these areas allow very

          6  generous definitions of the height of walls of the

          7  building, the amount of coverage the building can

          8  have, and even what can be not counted as zoning

          9  floor area. So the R2A provides tighter rules for

         10  all of those issues.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I also neglected

         12  to mention, and I think it's very important to bring

         13  up once again, the text amendment. This came up in

         14  the Bayside rezoning, which is the first that we had

         15  ever done with the R2A zoning category, where we

         16  realized there was an inconsistency between people,

         17  homeowners doing alterations and developers putting

         18  up new buildings where to vest under the old zoning,

         19  a developer, all they had to do was put in a

         20  foundation, whereas a homeowner doing an alteration,

         21  literally had to complete the entire alteration,

         22  which I think was unfair, brought it to City

         23  Planning's attention, thought it was unfair, the

         24  Mayor's office thought it was unfair, and I'm happy

         25  that you took my suggestion that change will now be
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          2  effective with this, that as long as the homeowner

          3  puts up the structural framing, that will constitute

          4  being vested under the old zoning. So, inadvertently

          5  when we do these rezonings, we're not catching

          6  homeowners in the middle. It certainly a different

          7  situation than a developer who knows what's going on

          8  with zoning changes.

          9                 My only caveat to this, is while I

         10  appreciate that you've done this and taken my

         11  suggestion, you know that I mentioned this at the

         12  City Planning hearing, that we're only doing it now

         13  in areas where we're changing from R2 to R2A, this

         14  is a change that should be done across the board in

         15  all low-density areas. Because you could have a

         16  homeowner in a two-family or a three-family house

         17  that still gets caught in the middle.

         18                 So, once again, I'm making an

         19  official recommendation to the Commission and the

         20  Department of City Planning, that we institute this

         21  change in the other zoning categories when we do a

         22  rezoning.

         23                 MR. YOUNG: Thank you for your

         24  suggestion, and thank you, again, for coming up with

         25  the solution that we're implementing here.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

          3  questions?

          4                 Okay, thank you. We will now move on

          5  to the public hearing.

          6                 This is a little unique, so we're

          7  going to have to do this slightly different.

          8  Basically everybody has signed up in favor of the

          9  application, but there are these outstanding issues.

         10  So, what I'm going to ask you to do, and this is for

         11  your own sake, to make sure that your position is

         12  clearly understood, if you're in favor of the

         13  application, the way it was originally proposed, say

         14  so. If you were in favor of the application the way

         15  City Planning just modified it, say so, so I can

         16  understand the two different positions. Because if

         17  you just say you were in favor of it, then you're in

         18  favor of the modification, that's not going to be

         19  clear for the record. To be fair to everybody.

         20                 Normally I do opposing panels, those

         21  in favor, those in opposition, but not everybody I

         22  see indicated that they're in favor of the modified

         23  rezoning. So, I'm going to have to play this by ear,

         24  so-to-speak.

         25                 I'm going to call up representatives
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          2  of the community board and the civic association

          3  first. Let's call up Community Board 11, Eliott

          4  Socci from the Douglaston Civic Association, Bob

          5  Nobile from the Little Neck Pines Association, and

          6  that will be the first panel and then we'll move

          7  from there.

          8                 I'm going to ask everybody to keep to

          9  a two-minute time frame. I don't normally cut people

         10  off, because we have 40 speakers, I don't normally

         11  cut people off in the middle of their statement, but

         12  I do ask that you keep to that time frame, and try

         13  and not repeat what the previous person said.

         14                 Even if you just want to get up and

         15  testify I'm in support of this, or I'm in support of

         16  the modified proposal, that's sufficient to get it

         17  on the record.

         18                 MR. IANNECZ: (Not identified for the

         19  record.) Good morning. I want to thank the Council

         20  for holding the meetings, and I want to congratulate

         21  the community and thank you for coming out en masse

         22  like you did today. And, of course, I want to thank

         23  City Planning for doing such an incredible job with

         24  this plan and for being so receptive with the give

         25  and take with this entire plan.
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          2                 First let me start by saying with the

          3  text amendment, it's a no brainer. The community

          4  board is totally in sync. It was something that we

          5  identified right after the Bayside rezoning, with

          6  all the stop work orders, it must be passed. Must be

          7  passed.

          8                 In regards to this plan itself, let's

          9  make it very clear, the community board is not in

         10  favor of the general plan. They're in favor of this

         11  plan, this modified plan. This modified plan is

         12  basically 99 percent the plan that was put forth by

         13  this community board. The community board spent a

         14  number of hours, exhaustive hours, meeting with the

         15  community to do anything and everything we could in

         16  order to solicit as much input as we possibly could

         17  on the original plan, because in many ways we wanted

         18  to make sure that plan was a good fit. Only after

         19  that, this plan, this modification came through the

         20  community board. It was not an arbitrary change, as

         21  you people have suggested. It was a specific change.

         22  The community came out, they spoke in full force,

         23  they went to all the hearings and I want to again

         24  thank the City Planning for making this change.

         25                 The community has the right to
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          2  self-determination. This plan fits. It's in line

          3  with the character and liberty and the contextual

          4  area that we're now zoning, and it's something that

          5  the community board strongly urges this Council to

          6  pass as suggested by the City Planning.

          7                 Again, I want to thank you for all

          8  the time and effort you put in. Again, I want to

          9  thank the community for being here showing us what

         10  this means and it's very important to you. And I

         11  want to thank all the civic readers, which we also

         12  reached out to before we devised this plan. Again,

         13  thanks to everybody. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We don't have a

         15  slip.

         16                 MR. IANNECZ: No, I filled out a slip.

         17  I was one of the first ones.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We don't have it.

         19  Can you fill out another one?

         20                 MR. IANNECZ: I'll fill out another

         21  one. Sure. Do I get to speak again? No. Happy

         22  holidays.

         23                 MR. SOCCI: My name is Elliot Socci. I

         24  am a long-time resident of Douglaston and president

         25  of the Douglaston Civic Association.
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          2                 I believe a community has a right to

          3  define itself, but not just one individual or a

          4  small group of individuals, but the community as a

          5  whole.  To firmly measure the voice of the

          6  Douglaston community, the DCA sent out a petition to

          7  its membership. The response was overwhelmingly in

          8  favor of the original City Planning proposal to

          9  rezone the community.

         10                 The result of the petition drive was

         11  677 signatures in favor of the proposal and four

         12  against.

         13                 There were also 139 households that

         14  did not respond to the petition at all.

         15                 It is clear that the Douglaston

         16  community is in favor of the original rezoning

         17  proposal. This choice was made in spite of the many

         18  misleading flyers and deceptions that are presented

         19  by developers who are trying to force a decision on

         20  the community. The choice of the community is clear,

         21  is overwhelming in favor of the original rezoning

         22  proposal. Now I would like to comment on the

         23  conditions that have been attached to the proposal.

         24                 The first condition, which has been

         25  referred to as a text amendment regarding permits
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          2  for work-in-progress is understandable and fair. We

          3  have no problem with this issue, accepting it as it

          4  was stated.

          5                 Another condition, which has now

          6  become today, we have learned, a City Planning

          7  Commission modification, proposes that an area in

          8  Littleneck remain with the existing R2 or R1-2

          9  zoning, as the case may be. This condition was put

         10  forth because of opposition by a small portion of

         11  the area. I believe that the zoning determination

         12  should be determined by the staff of Queens City

         13  Planning, who is expert in this manner.

         14                 The opposition to the zoning proposal

         15  was led by a self-appointed expert who has delivered

         16  a particular presentation on several occasions to

         17  make his point. Mr. John Young of the Queens City

         18  Planning was asked to give his opinion of his

         19  presentation and he stated the presentation was

         20  inaccurate and was misleading.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Just to be fair

         22  to everybody, if you could sum up.

         23                 MR. SOCCI: I'll give you one last

         24  sentence.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.
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          2                 MR. SOCCI: Therefore, any condition

          3  based on deception should not be granted. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          5                 Bob.

          6                 MR. NOBILE: I would like to thank

          7  everybody for giving us the opportunity to speak. My

          8  name is Bob Nobile. I'm the President of the Little

          9  Neck Pines Civic Association of Little Neck, Queens.

         10                 Our civic association members are in

         11  favor of City Planning's rezoning of

         12  Douglaston/Littleneck application as it was

         13  originally written. The R2A zoning is working and

         14  the community is already rezoned with this tool in

         15  Bayside and other nearby communities.

         16                 We are asking to keep some greenspace

         17  in our community with R2A and not be repaved

         18  completely by monster homes with no lawns or

         19  gardens.

         20                 These Mcmansions tower over existing

         21  homes that now see no daylight. This zoning

         22  application is the first one presented with great

         23  opposition, as you will hear today, from our

         24  opponents.

         25                 The Little Neck community has been
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          2  subject to scare tactics by architects, engineers

          3  and developers. Flyers were distributed in target

          4  areas, which I attached to this.

          5                 The Little Neck community has been

          6  subject to -- let me find my place. Flyers have been

          7  distributed in targeted areas of Little Neck,

          8  misleading homeowners into believing they would

          9  never be able to remodel their kitchen, dormer their

         10  home, and the property values will go down and that

         11  the property values will go down with the devil R2A.

         12                 I'm going to skip because I know my

         13  time is limited, but basically we're in favor of it.

         14  And I need to talk about the commercial overlay.

         15                 The commercial overlay was

         16  originally, and I'm not going to read from my text,

         17  the commercial overlay as originally written by City

         18  Planning John Young, and urban planner Paul

         19  Graziano, we were 100 percent in favor of removing

         20  it from 150 feet to 100 feet. As a community, we do

         21  not want the businesses on the side streets. Most of

         22  the businesses, and if you look at the properties,

         23  are well within 100 feet. There is only a few and

         24  that is the one landlord that made the exception,

         25  went to City Planning Commission and complained that
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          2  his property would be some sort of -- he would have

          3  some kind of a loss or hardship if we changed the

          4  zoning code. He owns the adjacent property, which I

          5  have included in my testimony here, and this photo,

          6  is that he owns the attached two-family home, and he

          7  already owns all the property around him, so there

          8  is no hardship to him. We want to keep all the

          9  property at 100 feet because we're afraid that

         10  businesses are going to come into the side street.

         11  We don't want the carwashes and lord knows what on

         12  our side streets. We want to keep our residential

         13  area residential and the businesses on Northern

         14  Boulevard where they belong.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Bob, I'm looking

         16  at your testimony in the picture. Is this correct?

         17  So that he owns this house?

         18                 MR. NOBILE: Yes. The same landlord

         19  owns the attached two-family house.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Where does that

         21  fit on the property line? How far in the corner of

         22  Northern Boulevard is that? Is that 100 feet? Is

         23  that 150 feet?

         24                 MR. NOBILE: The mall that is on there

         25  is 146 feet back. Then he owns the additional
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          2  property, which is within the 150 feet. I mean, that

          3  building is only 15 feet wide and the property is 20

          4  feet.

          5                 So, clearly I guess the only question

          6  he would have as far as commercial property, his

          7  two-family home is split in what the zoning text is

          8  now, and his property was clearly grandfathered into

          9  the new zoning code. So, there is no hardship or

         10  loss to him, and we're happy with the way his

         11  building is now, and his building is less than ten

         12  years old, so I can't see any kind of hardship or

         13  loss where he thinks he's going to knock his

         14  building down and rebuild, which we know he's not

         15  going to do. He's already maxed out his property.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: So, if I

         17  understand you correctly, the recommendation of the

         18  Civic Association is to modify it back to the 100

         19  feet?

         20                 MR. NOBILE: Yes. Keep all the

         21  property on Northern Boulevard, the commercial

         22  overlay to 100 feet. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         24                 Any questions from Committee members?

         25  Thank you.
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          2                 MR. NOBILE: Thanks for your time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The next panel is

          4  Henry Euler, representing the Auburndale Improvement

          5  Association, Paul Graziano, Walter Mugdan from the

          6  Westmoreland Association.

          7                 MR. EULER: Okay, my name is Henry

          8  Euler, a member of Community Board 11, and I'm also

          9  the Zoning and Housing Chair of the Auburndale

         10  Improvement Association. I'm here to support my

         11  friends and neighbors in Douglaston, Little Neck. I

         12  support the original contextual rezoning plan as

         13  presented by the City Planning Commission to the

         14  Community Board originally.

         15                 I'm a resident of Bayside, and I see

         16  how well the contextual rezoning has worked in our

         17  community, especially the new R2A designation.

         18                 We have a house on our block that was

         19  just recently constructed after the rezoning. It's a

         20  large house but it doesn't overpower the other

         21  houses, and it doesn't protrude out into the street,

         22  and its height is appropriate for the neighborhood.

         23                 As I walk around Bayside, I notice

         24  other construction being done, and I see

         25  renovations, extensions on houses. Everything seems
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          2  to be going well. But, of course, we need the

          3  Department of Buildings to continue to monitor all

          4  construction for compliance to new regulations.

          5                 I support the text amendment

          6  regarding the alterations, but there were some

          7  suggestions that came before the community board to

          8  modify R2A. I'm opposed to that. I see R2A working

          9  well, and I don't want to see anything done to

         10  weaken it.

         11                 I want to thank the City Planning

         12  Commission for their efforts, especially their

         13  effort in further protecting the environmentally

         14  sensitive Udall's Cove area, with more appropriate

         15  zoning designation. Thank you also to Councilman

         16  Avella, and Urban Specialist Paul Graziano for their

         17  continued efforts towards contextual rezoning

         18  throughout Northeast Queens. I'm currently working

         19  with the Auburndale Community as a volunteer to get

         20  that area contextually rezoned. It's been held up

         21  for some time, and I'm looking forward to seeing it

         22  be done very soon.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Before I go on to

         25  the next speaker, I just want to comment that, you

                                                            49

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  know, I am pushing the North Flushing and the

          3  Auburndale Study to go ahead as quickly as possible.

          4  And we've told City Planning that in effect both

          5  areas are under significant development pressure. So

          6  North Flushing is in progress, and I'm getting good

          7  vibes from City Planning on Auburndale.

          8                 Right, John? Shake your head. Thanks.

          9  Next speaker.

         10                 MR. GRAZIANO: Paul Graziano.

         11                 As the author of the Zoning

         12  Recommendations Report for the 19th Council

         13  District, which has been more or less adopted by the

         14  Department of City Planning in Bayside, College

         15  Point and White Stone, I wholeheartedly support the

         16  contextual rezoning of Douglaston and Little Neck,

         17  without any further map changes or changes to the

         18  proposal as presented at Community Board 11 by City

         19  Planning. Not as it is today.

         20                 Of the three changes, the one that I

         21  would only support is the change to R3-1 on Little

         22  Neck Parkway. That one block is entirely made up of

         23  two-family homes.

         24                 Under the proposed rezoning, over 135

         25  blocks that are to be affected will be for the first
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          2  time protected from the rampant abuse of

          3  overdevelopment that has been plaguing large areas

          4  of our borough for more than a decade.

          5                 And I'll just cut to the chase here

          6  which is that the R2A has been working in these

          7  neighborhoods where it's been mapped, and it has

          8  managed to really keep new construction within the

          9  scale of the streetscape, which is very important to

         10  these neighborhoods where it's being done,

         11  particularly the line-up provision and keeping the

         12  buildings at a 21-foot perimeter wall.

         13                 I'll just say that the folks that

         14  have been fighting this have used some pretty harsh

         15  scare tactics, and it's been very disturbing to see

         16  the low kind of level of conversation that this got

         17  to while this was going on in discussion.

         18                 Finally, while the number of

         19  residents in the 15 blocks East of Marathon Parkway,

         20  between Northern Boulevard and Long Island

         21  Expressway have vociferously opposed the rezoning of

         22  their area from R2 to R2A, by no means do they make

         23  up the majority of the residents who live there,

         24  most of whom support the proposed R2A zoning

         25  designation. It would be unfair for the concerns of
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          2  a few to outweigh the wants and needs of the many,

          3  particularly when dealing with hundreds of homes and

          4  hundreds of millions of dollars worth of real

          5  estate.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. And

          7  thank you for getting within two minutes.

          8                 Walter.

          9                 MR. MUGDAN: My name is Walter Mugdan.

         10  I'm president of the Westmoreland Association. We

         11  represent about 330 homes in the Westmoreland area

         12  of Little Neck. About 85 percent of those homes are

         13  located within the current R2 and would be rezoned

         14  under R2A under this proposal.

         15                 We strongly, we enthusiastically

         16  endorse the proposal. Endorsement is of the original

         17  proposal. We have not voted on the newer version

         18  from City Planning, because of course, we didn't

         19  really see it. So, all I can say on behalf of the

         20  organization is that we endorse the original

         21  proposal.

         22                 I personally believe the original

         23  proposal is a fair one, but that doesn't represent

         24  anything as to the organization, which has only

         25  voted on the original one.
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          2                 However, I would want to say, because

          3  process is important in understanding outcome, that

          4  we have had seven general membership meetings in the

          5  time since March of '05 when this first came as an

          6  official proposal. We during that time had two

          7  formal votes, both of which were unanimous in

          8  supporting the proposal. At each of those seven

          9  meetings, even when there wasn't an official vote

         10  being taken, we have had discussions, and there has

         11  been one or another kind of unanimous expression of

         12  continued support for this.

         13                 At the very first meeting where we

         14  had our first vote, you were there, you made a

         15  presentation, others were there as well, we provided

         16  a lot of information, we provided maps, we have them

         17  on our website, we have links to the City Planning

         18  Department website, on our website, we've encouraged

         19  people to look at that. We have a strong turnout.

         20  Twenty percent of our homeowners were represented at

         21  that first meeting, and everybody knows, the

         22  Homeowners Association knows that's a big

         23  percentage. We feel that we have provided a lot of

         24  information, we have encouraged all of our members

         25  to make their views pro or con known to their
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          2  officials, and we remain unanimously in endorsement

          3  of this proposal.

          4                 We do support the text amendment. As

          5  I said, we haven't had occasion to vote on the other

          6  matters. If I can just ask your indulgence, by the

          7  way, a little bit more of the details are in my

          8  statement which I gave to the sergeant. If I can put

          9  a different hat on, I'm also president of the

         10  Udall's Cove Preservation Committee, and that

         11  organization also strongly supports the changes that

         12  were discussed by the City Planning folks in the

         13  Udall's Park and Ravine.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         16                 The next panel of speakers, Ann

         17  Jawin, from the Bay Manor Civic Association, and I

         18  think I have two representatives from Winchester

         19  Estates, George Karahalis and Sam DaGrossa. Am I

         20  correct?

         21                 MS. JAWIN: My name is Ann Jawin, and

         22  I'm representing the Doug Bay Manor Civic

         23  Association. I'll try to be brief and not repeat the

         24  other arguments, because you don't really need to

         25  hear them again. But I'm here basically to support
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          2  the proposed zoning changes, and modifications as

          3  recommended by Community Board 11 and City Planning

          4  and the proposed text amendment, as described by

          5  Councilman Avella.

          6                 I believe that a lot of work was done

          7  into these changes where we can modify and meet the

          8  interests of some particular groups that have been

          9  clear, I think we have to, there has been ugliness

         10  and that is, unfortunately, a byproduct of

         11  democracy, maybe. But I think in the longrun the

         12  recommendations of the City, of the Community

         13  Planning Board and the City Planning were done with

         14  a certain real disregard for the excitability but

         15  the reason and logic of certain particular

         16  neighborhoods. So, I support it. Thank you.

         17                 MR. KARAHALIS: George Karahalis,

         18  president of Commonwealth Civic Association, and

         19  representative of Board 11, Home Owners Board 11.

         20                 I want to thank John Young and

         21  company for the effort that made the change, the

         22  previous zoning. I'm dead against that. I think the

         23  previous zoning was working very well, as the

         24  witness said in Bayside and other places, therefore,

         25  there is no reason to go no further than that, other
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          2  than accept the original zoning.

          3                 I have no objections to what the

          4  original zoning map has there, and I'd like to stay,

          5  if possible, with the original zoning.

          6                 That's all I have to say. I want to

          7  thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I think you mean

          9  to say with the original certification application,

         10  not the original zoning.

         11                 MR. KARAHALIS: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The original

         13  zoning would be --

         14                 MR. KARAHALIS: I will apologize for

         15  that, yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I just wanted to

         17  make that clear for the record. I knew what you were

         18  saying, but --

         19                 MR. KARAHALIS: Thank you.

         20                 MR. DaGROSS: Sam DaGrossa, President

         21  of Winchester Civic Association, which is one of the

         22  smallest communities in the southeast corner of

         23  Douglaston.

         24                 We originally had approximately 30

         25  homes in that area. It's dead-end streets, 244th,
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          2  242nd, and means of egress are fairly tight also.

          3  It's one way leading to two dead ends.

          4                 We are now impacted with eight more

          5  of these new homes. And it's completely changed the

          6  character of the area, and the people also feel that

          7  they're in jeopardy as far as safety hazards also,

          8  this has created.

          9                 And we are all in favor of the

         10  original R2A.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         12                 Next panel, I'll try and figure out

         13  who is going to say what. Frank Demante, Vinnie

         14  Scibelli, and please forgive me if I mispronounce

         15  the name. Jana Giampilis and Sandra Graber.

         16                 Who wants to go first?

         17                 MS. GRABER: Good morning, Council

         18  members. My name is Sandra Graber.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Press the button.

         20  When the light is off, it's on. I know it doesn't

         21  make any sense, but it's the way it works.

         22                 MS. GRABER: Okay. Could you start

         23  that clock again, please.

         24                 My name is Sandra Graber. I've lived

         25  in Little Neck for 19 years. I'm in favor of the
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          2  modified application submitted by the City Planning

          3  Commission to leave Little Neck Hills, east of

          4  Marathon Parkway, R2.

          5                 I do not want my area of Little Neck

          6  Hills rezoned. In my view, it is impractical to do

          7  so. It just seems to me that placing restrictions on

          8  home building as proposed, is a way of restricting

          9  people's lifestyles.

         10                 The house that was built in 1929, as

         11  mine was, or the house that was built in 1954, no

         12  longer meet the needs of today's growing families.

         13                 I'm a retired school teacher in

         14  District 26, the school district that Little Neck is

         15  in. My students all had computers. In some cases,

         16  each child in the family had his own computer on a

         17  stand next to his own desk.

         18                 The parents had their own computers,

         19  not to mention printers and copiers, and then there

         20  is the 36-inch TV, exercise equipment, and all the

         21  things that these days contribute to an energetic,

         22  resourceful and well-rounded life.

         23                 There is also the fact that we all

         24  now have more clothes than we ever had before, that

         25  people ever had before, and we need some place to
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          2  put it all.

          3                 Although I'm not concerned with the

          4  need to expand my house, the people I may one day

          5  sell my house to will be. They will find the house

          6  to be inadequate for their needs and lifestyle. That

          7  family will need to know that they will be able to

          8  make changes or construct a new dwelling that meets

          9  their needs.

         10                 Times have changed and continue to

         11  change rapidly. That's life, and we all have to move

         12  on. Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I assume you

         14  meant, when you started off speaking, that you're in

         15  favor of the modified proposal? Because you said you

         16  were against the rezoning. Because part of the area

         17  that's in question is being rezoned, even though it

         18  may not be rezoned to R2A. Part of it is R1-2. So,

         19  if you say you're against the rezoning, you're in

         20  effect saying you may want to go back to R1-2

         21  instead of the R2.

         22                 So, I think for people to come up and

         23  speak, they've got to be very clear as to what your

         24  intentions are.

         25                 So, I assume, am I correct, that
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          2  you're in favor of the modified version of City

          3  Planning; yes or no?

          4                 MS. GRABER: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.

          6                 MR. DeMANTE: Good morning,

          7  Councilman. My name is Frank DeMante. I lived in

          8  Bayside Hills for 20 years or more, Little Neck

          9  Hills. I'm in favor of the modified rezoned proposal

         10  that is being presented here today by the City

         11  Planning. We ask City Council's support to modify

         12  the proposal to keep Little Neck Hills in R2. Thank

         13  you.

         14                 MR. SCIBELLI: Good morning. My name

         15  is Vinny Scibelli. I am in favor of the modified

         16  rezoning proposal that is being presented here today

         17  by City Planning. After they visit our area and met

         18  with residents to hear how we feel, it was concluded

         19  that the R2 best meet the needs of our community.

         20                 We urge City Council to support the

         21  modified proposal to keep Little Neck Hills R2. I

         22  want to thank our Councilman Tony Avella for meeting

         23  with us several times and recognize our concern. We

         24  hope and trust that this modified proposal will

         25  adopt as presented here today to keep Little Neck
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          2  Hills R2.

          3                 We are very appreciative of all the

          4  hard work and effort was put into this modified

          5  proposal by City Planning. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. Next

          7  speaker.

          8                 MS. GIAMPILIS: Good morning. My name

          9  is Jana Giampilis, and I live at 24943 Van Zandt

         10  Avenue. Me and my husband recently moved to the

         11  neighborhood. We thought the neighborhood is going

         12  to be a good place to raise our family. We bought an

         13  old house with the intention of slowly fixing it up.

         14                 We support the City Planning

         15  Commission zoning approval with modification where

         16  Little Neck Hills and east of Martin Parkway will

         17  remain R2. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Next panel, I'll

         19  see if I can break it up a little bit, Stuart Hersh,

         20  Stewart Jensen, Joseph Hellman and Sara Vescatel.

         21                 MS. MARSINA: My name is Marie

         22  Marsina. I am a member of the Douglaston Civic

         23  Association and I've been a resident of Douglaston

         24  for 14 years. I am here today to support the

         25  original proposal to rezone parts of Douglaston and
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          2  request that this Committee vote in favor of that

          3  proposal.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 MS. VESCATEL: My name is Sara

          6  Vescatel, and I've been a resident of Little Neck

          7  Westmoreland area for over 33 years. I am in favor

          8  of the original proposal. There is nothing in the

          9  original proposal that prevents homeowners from

         10  expanding their homes in a way consistent with the

         11  existing structures.

         12                 As a matter of fact, I just added

         13  tremendously to my home and it's about to be

         14  approved by the Buildings Department.

         15                 What that original proposal does do

         16  is prevent people from tearing down existing homes

         17  and building homes that reach almost as high as this

         18  ceiling and blocking out the sunlight from the

         19  people in the neighborhood.

         20                 I'm also in favor of keeping the

         21  commercial zoning at 100 feet, and I'm in favor of

         22  the text amendment. Thank you very much.

         23                 MR. HELLMAN: Thank you for the

         24  opportunity to testify in favor of the Douglaston

         25  Little Neck rezoning proposal.
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          2                 My name is Joseph Hellman, and I'm a

          3  member of Community Board 11 in Queens. As a member

          4  of that board I voted in favor of the first rezoning

          5  plan prepared by the Department of City Planning,

          6  and I continue to be in favor of that plan without

          7  the subsequent modifications.

          8                 In a related matter, one of the

          9  stated purposes of rezoning a new R2A zone is to

         10  prevent a demolition of sound houses and their

         11  replacement by oversized, out-of-context homes.

         12  Implementation of the proposed measures will not

         13  entirely eliminate this stated problem, until the

         14  loopholes in the R1 zoning text is also closed.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Before we go to

         17  the next speaker, you know, I wholeheartedly incur

         18  with your assessment that there are so many

         19  loopholes in R1-2, we've asked the Department of

         20  City Planning for two years to review that zoning

         21  designation as well, and I'm still waiting. I'm not

         22  happy that I'm still waiting, because we've gotten a

         23  lot of requests from people who have homes in those

         24  designations, saying well if you've done something

         25  in R2 and you created R2A, why can't you do
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          2  something for our 1-2 districts. So, we're still

          3  waiting for that review to come on board.

          4                 MR. JENSEN: Good morning. My name is

          5  Stewart Jensen. I have been a resident of Douglaston

          6  for 33 years, and I am in favor of the proposal

          7  rezoning as originally planned. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          9                 Next panel, and I know I'm going to

         10  pronounce this wrong. Madhy Hemrajani. Was that

         11  close enough? Was that pretty good? Rosa Scibeli.

         12  Antonino Gagliardo, and Argentina Gagliardo.

         13                 MS. HEMRAJANI: Good morning,

         14  honorable Council members. My name is Madhy

         15  Hemrajani, and I live in Little Neck hills, and I am

         16  in favor of the modified rezoning, the proposal that

         17  is being presented here today by City Planning. We

         18  ask the City Council to support the modified

         19  proposal to keep Little Neck Hills R2. Thank you.

         20  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Ms. Scibeli.

         22                 MS. SCIBELI: Good morning, honorable

         23  Council members. My name is Rosa Scibeli. I have

         24  been a resident of Little Neck Hills for over 15

         25  years. After all the anticipation and hard work, I
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          2  am in pleased and I am in favor of the modified

          3  rezoning proposal that is being presented here today

          4  by City Planning.

          5                 By all means do we represent just a

          6  few, but we are a majority. In fact, I handed in

          7  some letters from residents throughout Little Neck

          8  Hills that support this modified proposal. We ask

          9  the City Council to support this modification and

         10  leave Little Neck Hills R2. As this is the wish of

         11  the residents. Homes in Little Neck Hills are being

         12  kept as one family, and the landscaping is

         13  beautiful. We have plenty of green and sunlight, and

         14  we take pride in our community.

         15                 I want to thank the Community Board

         16  11 and our Borough President for the recommendation

         17  to leave Little Neck Hills R2. I want to thank

         18  especially the Department of City Planning for their

         19  hard work in reviewing the proposal and hearing the

         20  concerns of the residents.

         21                 I also want to thank the City

         22  Planning Commission for modifying the application

         23  with the change to leave Little Neck Hills R2, and a

         24  special thanks for our Council Member Tony Avella

         25  for all the time and effort that he devoted to this
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          2  project.

          3                 I assure you that the residents of

          4  Little Neck Hills are pleased, and that this

          5  modification will have a positive affect on our

          6  community.

          7                 This modification to leave Little

          8  Neck Hills R2 will not affect those who are in favor

          9  of the original proposal. I assure you that the

         10  residents of Little Neck Hills are pleased. Thank

         11  you for giving us the opportunity to speak on this

         12  very important matter.

         13                 MS. GAGLIARDO: Good morning. My name

         14  is Argentina Gagliardo. I am a resident of Little

         15  Neck Hills. I am in support of the City Planning

         16  modified rezoning proposal. After much devotion and

         17  effort put into this project, I am very pleased with

         18  the modifications presented here this morning,

         19  leaving Little Neck Hills R2. I wish to thank

         20  Community Board 11 for proposing the recommendation

         21  after hearing the voices of the residents, our

         22  Borough President for supporting it, the Department

         23  of City Planning and the Planning Commission for

         24  reviewing our area and modifying the rezoning

         25  proposal to meet the needs of our community.
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          2                 With a special thanks to our

          3  Councilman, Tony Avella, for having met with the

          4  residents and recognizing our concerns.

          5                 After attending all the meetings and

          6  hearings, we have finally come to the last step of

          7  this long and exhausting process.

          8                 At this time, I ask the support of

          9  the City Council. Please vote in favor of the

         10  proposal as it is presented today to leave Little

         11  Neck Hills R2.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 MR. GAGLIARDO: Good morning. My name

         14  is Antonino Gagliardo. I'm a resident of Little Neck

         15  Hills. I'm here to support the proposal of the City

         16  Planning modification as proposed today. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That's all you

         18  need to say. Thank you.

         19                 Stewart, are you ready to come up

         20  now?

         21                 Judy and Donald Oderwald and Franklin

         22  Lloyd. I do appreciate the fact that everybody is

         23  keeping to the time restraints and we're moving

         24  ahead rather expeditiously.

         25                 MR. HERSH: I'm Stuart Hersh. My name
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          2  is Stuart Hersh. I'm a 40-year resident of

          3  Douglaston, and I am overwhelmingly in favor of the

          4  proposal as originally proposed. I would like to say

          5  that I'm a documentary film maker whose work has

          6  taken him all over the United States, and to distant

          7  parts of the world, and I think that gives me a

          8  credential to say that New York City, in my

          9  estimation, is the greatest City in the world, and

         10  Douglaston Little Neck is the greatest community in

         11  that City. And I think what makes New York City such

         12  a great City is the fact that it accommodates

         13  communities like Douglaston and Little Neck, and I

         14  really would hate to see that change any more than

         15  it has.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 MS. ODERWALD: My name is Judy

         18  Oderwald. I support the original proposal of R2A

         19  zoning regulation. I have been a resident of Little

         20  Neck for over 32 years. Everything was fine until

         21  some greedy individual started searching for and

         22  exploiting loopholes in the R2 zoning to the

         23  detriment of the neighborhoods.

         24                 Compounding the problem is the fact

         25  that the Buildings Department hasn't been doing a
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          2  very good job policing the R2 zoning regulations,

          3  and the R2A is supposed to give them more precise

          4  rules to work with in combatting infractions of the

          5  law.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 MR. ODERWALD: My name is Donald

          8  Oderwald. I'm a resident of Little Neck for over 32

          9  years. I'm in favor of the original proposal. Thank

         10  you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That's got to be

         12  the shortest one on record.

         13                 Let's see if anybody can beat that.

         14  Go ahead.

         15                 MR. LLOYD: My name is Franklin Lloyd.

         16  I'm a resident of Little Neck, I live on Morgan

         17  Street. I'm a member of the Westmoreland

         18  Association.

         19                 We have direct experience with the

         20  McMansion problem. Standing in our front yard, two

         21  homes on the left are quite outsized for the rest of

         22  the block. An 80-foot lot was split and wall to wall

         23  houses was put up on both based on loopholes in the

         24  existing zoning, loopholes I think were even so

         25  literally interpreted that hardly any reasonable

                                                            69

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  person would think they don't comply.

          3                 Across the street is another huge

          4  home that makes the house next to it look like a

          5  doll house. I mean, this is very inappropriate

          6  overdevelopment. And I'm in favor of the original

          7  proposal, and I think the text amendment is a good

          8  idea. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         10                 The next panel is Bae Lee, Nam Lee,

         11  Chris Petallides, Betty Klein.

         12                 MR. LEE: Good morning, Councilman. My

         13  name is Bae Lee, and I live in Little Neck area, and

         14  I am in favor of modified rezoning proposal by

         15  Department of City Planning.

         16                 First of all, I understand, those who

         17  are supporting original plan, at this map, in this

         18  area, those people who are supporting original plan

         19  is not living in R2 area mostly. And just before I

         20  heard that one gentleman were telling --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Sir, let me just

         22  sort of cut this off, so you're not wasting your two

         23  minutes, and this is for everybody's benefit.

         24                 Everybody has an opinion, but is

         25  entitled to opinion. I will certainly weigh what
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          2  that opinion means in terms of where they live. So,

          3  you don't have to say that somebody else doesn't

          4  live in the neighborhood, why should they comment on

          5  me? But I want both sides to understand that. Nobody

          6  can speak for another. So, you don't have to make

          7  that point, and I actually don't think that point is

          8  appropriate.

          9                 You are here to testify about your

         10  situation, please do so. And rest assured, I'm

         11  paying attention to that.

         12                 MR. LEE: I thought I was affected by

         13  the situations, I should make clear. Many people

         14  probably not understand the situation, okay? But

         15  anyhow --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Trust me, I

         17  understand. Trust me, I understand.

         18                 MR. LEE: What I'm saying is, they're

         19  not affected and we are affected, so we have to have

         20  really decide. But anyway, so, I already mentioned

         21  that I'm in favor modified proposal, and actually I

         22  thank my community board and Borough President's

         23  Office, and Mr. John Young actually, City Planning

         24  for his hard work, to understand the situation and

         25  made this modified proposal. Thank you.
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          2                 MS. LEE: Good morning, Council

          3  member. My name is Nam Lee. I have lived in the

          4  Little Neck area for 14 years. I came here, I ask

          5  your support, the modified proposal, to keep Little

          6  Neck R2. Happy holiday to all of you. Thank you.

          7                 MR. PETALLIDES: Good morning, Mr.

          8  Chairman. My name is Chris Petallides. And as a

          9  homeowner inside the affected area in Little Neck

         10  Hills, I'm here to register my support in favor of

         11  the City Planning proposal as modified today.

         12                 The proposed R2 in Little Neck Hills

         13  correctly reflects the prevailing lot size, which is

         14  less than 60 feet, correctly reflects the housing

         15  stock existent plan as Liz Errico stated earlier, 96

         16  percent of them were being compliant, which is a

         17  great thing, and it respects the wishes of the

         18  residents that live there. Very important.

         19                 I want to thank the community board

         20  for doing their due diligence, and listening to the

         21  residents and doing their homework and they live

         22  there themselves for suggesting that east of

         23  Marathon Parkway be left as R2. I thank the Borough

         24  President for following suit, doing her homework

         25  with her staff, and I certainly want to commend City
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          2  Planning for revisiting and rethinking and modifying

          3  the plan to reflect all of these things that they

          4  have presented themselves. They did a damn good job

          5  and I commend them for it.

          6                 We ask your support to pass the

          7  proposal as modified today, and on behalf of my wife

          8  Nicki and myself, I wish everybody Merry Christmas

          9  and a happy new year, and happy holidays.

         10                 MS. KLEIN: Good afternoon. My name is

         11  Betty Klein, and I have resided in Little Neck Hills

         12  for the past 26 years.

         13                 Let me start by saying I am in favor

         14  of the modified application submitted by the City

         15  Planning Commission to leave Little Neck Hills east

         16  of Marathon Parkway R2.

         17                 Well, it's been a long, hard, uphill

         18  journey, dealing with the rezoning debate. It

         19  started initially with numerous community board

         20  meetings and then progressed to Borough President

         21  hearings that moved on to City Planning, and now

         22  ultimately rests in this concluding phase before our

         23  esteemed City Council members.

         24                 During this process, Borough

         25  President Helen Marshall agreed with the
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          2  recommendations from Community Board 11, and City

          3  Planning modified the proposal that Little Neck

          4  Hills east of Marathon Parkway remained R2.

          5                 We sincerely hoped that City Council

          6  members, after hearing that insightful presentation

          7  by Mr. Young, Ms. Errico and Jerry Iannecz, am I

          8  pronouncing it right? That you will respond to the

          9  information that they gave you, and also that you

         10  will, after hearing the presentation from some of

         11  the people living in Little Neck Hills, that you

         12  will hear their voice.

         13                 I just want to add as a last note

         14  that I went from door-to-door, blocks and blocks in

         15  Little Neck Hills.

         16                 On my block alone we have eight

         17  families. Seven out of the eight families said that

         18  they were for the modified application, and on other

         19  blocks I heard the same, same voice talking. So, I

         20  hope that the Committee responds to these voices.

         21  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The next panel,

         23  David Marizadea. You didn't indicate you're in

         24  favor. I assume you're in favor of the modified

         25  proposal. No, it's not on here. Is that it? Okay.

                                                            74

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  I'm trying to keep the panels together. It's rather

          3  confusing if you didn't indicate that.

          4                 Is there anybody else who wants to

          5  testify? Because the rest don't indicate this, in

          6  favor of the City, modified City Planning proposal.

          7  I'll pull your name out when you announce your name.

          8  Because you didn't indicate that on the slip. I

          9  assume you filled out a slip.

         10                 MR. MAIRZADEA: Good morning, Council

         11  member. My name is David Marizadea, and I'm a

         12  long-term resident of Little Neck Hills. I want to

         13  thank Council Avella for your efforts and taking

         14  your time to meet with residents in my area.

         15                 Although I understand rezoning may be

         16  required in some areas, I do not believe R2A is

         17  applicable in my area, especially in my house, since

         18  my house with the current law is already

         19  non-compliant.

         20                 I do strongly support the new

         21  modified proposal supported by John Young and the

         22  City Planning for the Little Neck Hills area. I also

         23  want to mention that a lot of residents who were

         24  supposed to participate, unfortunately, to do other

         25  work-related things could not attend.
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          2                 Thank you, and have a nice holiday.

          3                 MS. CHIANELLA: Good morning. My name

          4  is Rita Chianella, and I have lived in Little Neck

          5  Hills for 39 years. I am in favor of the modified

          6  rezoning proposal that is being represented here

          7  today by the City Planning. We ask City Council to

          8  support the modified proposal to keep Little Neck

          9  Hills R2. Thank you.

         10                 MR. CHIANELLA: Good morning. My name

         11  is Henry Chianella. I live in Little Neck for 40

         12  years. I am in favor of the modification of the

         13  rezoning proposal by the City Council.

         14                 We ask the City Council to support

         15  the modified proposal to keep Little Neck Hills as

         16  an R2 zone. I want to thank the City Council and all

         17  the members for their efforts and helping us get

         18  through these times. Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         20                 The next panel, Mary Meehus; is that

         21  it? William Sievers, Bill Perry, Marie Morra.

         22                 MS. MORRA: My name is Marie Morra,

         23  from Little Neck Pines Civic Association, and I'm in

         24  favor of R2A. Thank you.

         25                 MR. SIEVERS: Good morning, Council
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          2  member. My name is Bill Sievers. I live in

          3  Douglaston Hills for 43 years, which by my count

          4  this morning is the longest time of anybody in the

          5  room. I for years involved myself in community

          6  management and leadership and I was the individual

          7  who spearheaded the establishment of the Douglaston

          8  Hills Historic District recently. I'm in favor of

          9  the original plan as conceived by the City Planning

         10  Commission.

         11                 I do not like garage mihalls

         12  (phonetic), but I am also urging you that something

         13  has to be done with respect to R1-2A. That's very

         14  important. Thank you for all of your work,

         15  particularly all the other volunteer civic workers

         16  and managers and leaders. Thank you.

         17                 MS. MEEUUS: My name is Mary Meeuus.

         18  I'm a life-long resident of Little Neck. Needless to

         19  say, I've watched the Little Neck Douglaston area

         20  grow and develop through the years, but in recent

         21  years the town is starting to really look quite a

         22  lot like Flushing, maybe. They're taking down all

         23  these lovely houses, building monstrous houses. We

         24  need green. We need a little more green. So, I do

         25  favor the original plan. Thank you.
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          2                 MR. PERRY: Good morning. My name is

          3  Bill Perry. I'm also a life-long resident of Little

          4  Neck, and I'm in favor of the original proposal of

          5  rezoning to R2A without modification in order to

          6  preserve the character and scale of the Little Neck

          7  Douglaston area.

          8                 I attended the Community Board

          9  meeting in Bayside a few months ago, at which a

         10  slide show of new construction on meeting R2A

         11  guidelines in Bayside was presented. Unfortunately,

         12  but this was done at the end of the meeting, and at

         13  that time, most of the R2A opponents had left, I

         14  think anybody had seen that slideshow would

         15  acknowledge from looking at the houses, that they

         16  are more than sufficient to suit the needs of

         17  today's modern family.

         18                 Recently there's been a rash of

         19  development, over-development of larger and larger

         20  houses, as the developers struggle to meet the -- to

         21  beat the R2A deadline. Some of these ones going up

         22  now don't seem to even comply with R2, never mind

         23  R2A, and I don't think we can trust the developers,

         24  they're going to keep pushing the envelope and I

         25  think R2A across the board is the best way to do

                                                            78

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  that.

          3                 I'm also particularly concerned of

          4  the fact that when the Community Board made a

          5  modification they included some areas right off

          6  Marathon Parkway to the east in the middle between

          7  northern and Long Island Expressway that seem like

          8  they would be particularly damaged, where the houses

          9  are particularly small. Those blocks right now

         10  haven't been touched or barely touched. So, I think

         11  that would be particularly damaging to those

         12  residents in the area as a whole. Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         14                 Next panel is Marguerite LeBron,

         15  Beverly Just, Erwin Just and Amy Levitan. And that

         16  is the last panel. That is all that is signed up to

         17  speak.

         18                 MS. JUST: My name is Beverly Just. I

         19  live in the Little Neck Hills area on Thornhill and

         20  Marathon, which is now being discussed primarily.

         21                 I moved into that area 44 years ago.

         22  I chose it because it had grass and trees and was

         23  different from many of the other areas that I had

         24  lived where there were apartment houses and nothing

         25  else.
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          2                 And my children and I found it a

          3  small paradise, and now the trees, the developers

          4  come in, they don't live in the area, the first

          5  thing they do is cut down the trees. The next thing

          6  they do is create garages in which there is no

          7  grass. And I look around and I see my paradise is

          8  disappearing, and I feel very upset about it. I want

          9  to give to my neighbors and to the people who come

         10  after me the same kind of living I loved and

         11  enjoyed, and I cannot do that if you're going to cut

         12  down trees, and you're going to take away grass and

         13  give my neighbors nothing.

         14                 Some of the people who have come

         15  here, have complained when someone has put an

         16  addition on and said, oh, it's shaded my garden and

         17  I can't grow anything there, and these same people

         18  are now coming up and saying R2A is preventing them

         19  from building.

         20                 I think this is greed. We have to

         21  think of other people. This is one of the reasons

         22  why I've come here. I want to think of people who

         23  will come after me will enjoy the neighborhood as

         24  much as I have. And I don't want to deal with greedy

         25  people. I want people to love other people and be
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          2  with other people and want the same kind of thing.

          3                 This is an emotional appeal, because

          4  I feel very emotional about this, and I would like

          5  to see my neighborhood remain the same.

          6                 I am not in favor of the R2A modified

          7  proposal. I would like to see everything the same.

          8                 By the way, one last thing. This has

          9  nothing to do with my neighborhood, but in one area

         10  of Little Neck, they built an $8 million house, and

         11  not a tree, not a trace of grass, nothing. And it's

         12  a disgrace. This has nothing to do with my

         13  neighborhood. It just doesn't belong, and this is

         14  what's going up all around.

         15                 MR. JUST: My name is Erwin Just. As

         16  you can guess, I'm married to the speaker who just

         17  spoke. We moved into Little Neck 44 years ago. We

         18  moved into a very nice neighborhood, and we'd like

         19  to, when we move, leave it that way for our

         20  neighbors. That thought trumps the possibility of

         21  getting a few more bucks from a developer who will

         22  tear down our house and build some monstrous

         23  mansion. We haven't had any problem with expanding

         24  our house. We've expanded it so that it fits modern

         25  living. We have more room, we have computers, we
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          2  have enough bedrooms. We don't have any problem. We

          3  don't need a monstrous mansion. And for the reasons

          4  I've mentioned before, that you have heard before

          5  rather, monstrous mansions just don't do anything

          6  nice for the neighborhood.

          7                 In fact, I'll add this, because

          8  you've heard everything else about them. I suspect

          9  that in 50 to 100 years, either legally or

         10  illegally, some of those monstrous mansions will

         11  become boarding houses, or apartment houses. That

         12  worries me. Thank you very much.

         13                 MS. LeBRON: Good morning. My name is

         14  Marguierite LeBron. I live in Little Neck Hills.

         15  I've lived there for seven years, and I'm very happy

         16  to be able to live there. I came from communities

         17  where we didn't have light and space and air

         18  surrounding our houses that we have here, and I am

         19  concerned to maintain that sort of space around my

         20  dwelling and the dwellings of my neighbors.

         21                 To have a house that's three or four

         22  stories high next to me is not what I moved to

         23  Little Neck Hills for. I could have stayed in

         24  Astoria for that. I want to ask the Council to vote

         25  in favor of the original R2A rezoning, and I
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          2  heartily support that myself. Thank you for your

          3  time and the opportunity to speak to you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          5                 If there is no one else to speak for

          6  this -- oh, I'm sorry. We were going from left to

          7  right.

          8                 MS. LEVITAN: Good morning. My name is

          9  Amy Levitan. I am here as a private citizen and

         10  homeowner in Littleneck today. I work for the Land

         11  Use Division and I have recused myself from anything

         12  to do with this project. I'm here speaking for

         13  myself. I am a property owner. I live in an

         14  irregular-shaped parcel on an irregular lot. It's

         15  actually a triangular parcel right off of the Grand

         16  Central Parkway, each and every lot is different on

         17  the block. It has s cul-de-sac, it's completely

         18  unique and even the size of the block and lot are

         19  irregular in dimensions and I'm here to ask the

         20  support of putting this and keeping this as the R2

         21  designation. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you, Amy.

         23  Sorry about that.

         24                 If there is no one else signed up to

         25  speak, I will close the public hearing on this item.
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          2                 The Zoning and Franchises Committee

          3  will be recessed until Monday morning at 9:45 at

          4  which time we may introduce amendments to the

          5  proposal. We will certainly take a vote on it.

          6                 I would say to everybody that

          7  obviously I will weigh very carefully all sides. I

          8  think the one thing that everybody has to

          9  understand, and I've heard this time and time again,

         10  that everybody wants their block or their house,

         11  their opinion to matter for their own particular

         12  house, but nobody can speak for somebody else. And

         13  I've heard that time and time again, from in effect

         14  both sides. You cannot speak for other people.

         15                 At the City Planning hearing, 18

         16  people testified in opposition. City Planning then

         17  went and modified a proposal for 248 homes. That's

         18  wrong. Because in effect, I'm not saying anything

         19  about those 18 people that testified, and most of

         20  them were here today, but 18 people cannot speak for

         21  248 people. And I think that is the crux of the

         22  matter.

         23                 There are two issues here, as an

         24  elected official I look at it two ways; I'm both a

         25  rubber stamp, representing the issues of my
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          2  constituents, but I'm also here to review these

          3  matters based upon my experience, and that's the

          4  reason I was elected, I think.

          5                 So, I'm going to take all of these

          6  issues into account. As you know, I did -- those

          7  people in the affected modified area, I did a

          8  complete survey to every homeowner. Some people

          9  obviously tried to get around the survey, but, you

         10  know, playing a little bit of a game. I have a

         11  pretty good idea who did that. But I designed the

         12  survey in such a way as you couldn't do that.

         13                 So, I have a very good idea whose in

         14  favor, who isn't. And I'm going to make a decision

         15  based upon that, based upon how residents feel about

         16  their own block, in conjunction with the overall

         17  issue of the community. Because I also thought some

         18  people made a very good point. They may not live on

         19  the block, but they have an issue they live on the

         20  community, and I think everybody has to get along,

         21  and I'm going to look at the thing in its entirety.

         22  Rest assured I'll make the best possible decision,

         23  and you will all know what that is.

         24                 I will make one comment. I am

         25  ashamed, ashamed of some people who have spread
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          2  misinformation about what this proposal does. And

          3  those few individuals, and they are just a few

          4  individuals, should be ashamed of themselves. But I

          5  guess they don't care, because nobody should, in

          6  effect, force somebody into a position, intimidate

          7  somebody into a position, or spread misinformation,

          8  and that has been done in Douglaston and Little Neck

          9  more so than any rezoning that has occurred since

         10  I've been Chairman of this Committee. And shame on

         11  you who did that.

         12                 With that, this meeting is recessed

         13  til Monday, 9:45.

         14                 (Hearing recessed at 11:47 a.m.)
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